CCASE:

CONSOLI DATION COAL V. SOL (MsHA)
DDATE:

19821206

TTEXT:



~2153

Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conmm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

CONSQOLI DATI ON COAL CQOVPANY, Cont ests of Order
CONTESTANT
V. Docket No. PENN 32-64-R
Order No. 1143777 1/12/82
SECRETARY OF LABOR,

M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH A Docket No. PENN 82-66-R
DM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , O der No. 1142981 1/13/82
RESPONDENT

Renton M ne

SECRETARY OF LABCR,

M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH Cvil Penalty Proceedi ngs
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) ,
PETI TI ONER Docket No. PENN 82-184
V. A.C. No. 36-00807-03112V
CONSCLI DATI ON COAL COVPANY, Docket No. PENN 82-109
RESPONDENT A.C. No. 36-00807-03109V

Renton M ne
DECI SI ON

Appearances: David T. Bush, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, U S. Departnent
of Labor, Phil adel phia, Pennsylvania, on behalf of the
Secretary of Labor
Robert M Vukas, Esqg., Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, for
Consol i dati on Coal Company

Bef or e: Admi ni strative Law Judge Broderick
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Docket No. PENN 82-64-R is a contest of Order of Wthdrawal
No. 1143777 issued January 12, 1982, under section 104(d)(1) of
the Act. The order refers back to Citation No. 1143669 issued
Decenmber 18, 1981. Docket No. PENN 82-184 is a civil penalty
proceedi ng seeking a penalty for the violation alleged in Oder
No. 1143777.
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Docket No. PENN 82-66-R is a contest of Order No. 1142981 issued
January 13, 1982, under section 104(d)(1) of the Act. This order
refers back to G tation No. 1143669 issued Decenber 18, 1981
Docket No. PENN 82-109 is a civil penalty proceedi ng seeking a
penalty for the violation alleged in Order No. 1142981

Citation No. 1143669 was issued under section 104(d) of the

Act. It was contested before Judge Gary Melick who found that
the violation charged occurred, but that it was not "significant
and substantial." Consolidation Coal Co. v. Secretary of Labor

4 FMBHRC 1533 (1982). This decision in effect converted the
104(d) (1) citation to a 104(a) citation

Consol i dati on Coal Co. noved for summary deci sion vacating
the two orders contested herein on the ground that there is no
| onger a valid underlying 104(d)(1) citation to support them The
Secretary nmoved to nodify Order No. 1143777 issued January 12,
1982, to a 104(d)(1) citation which would then serve as the
underlying 104(d)(1) citation for Order No. 1142981. | reserved
deci sion on the notions.

Since the cases involve a common issue of |aw and all arose
in the same mne at about the same tinme, they are hereby
CONSOLI DATED for the purpose of decision

Pursuant to notice, the cases were heard on the nerits in
Pi tt sburgh, Pennsylvania, on October 13, 14 and 15, 1982. Dennis
J. Swentosky and Richard J. Silka, Federal coal mne inspectors
and Daniel Fitzroy testified for the Secretary of Labor. Larry
Cuddy, Randy Debolt, Melvin Burkes and John Koma testified for
Consol i dati on Coal Conpany.

The parties waived the right to file witten proposed
findings of fact and conclusions of law. Based on the entire
record, and considering the contentions of the parties, | make
the foll owi ng decision

FI NDI NGS OF FACT COMMON TO ALL DOCKETS

1. At all times pertinent to these proceedi ngs,
Consol i dati on Coal Co. (Consol) was the owner and operator of the
Renton M ne in Al egheny County, Pennsylvania. Consol is a large
operator, and the inposition of a penalty will not affect its
ability to continue in business.

2. In the 20-nonth period prior to the date of the orders
contested herein, the operator had a history of 595 assessed
vi ol ati ons.

3. The operator denonstrated good faith in abating the
conditions alleged in the contested orders.
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FI NDI NGS OF FACT - DOCKET NCS. PENN 82-64-R AND PENN 82- 184

1. On January 12, 1982, Richard Silka, a Federal coal nine
i nspector and a duly authorized representative of the Secretary
of Labor, issued an order of wthdrawal to Consol under section
104(d) (1) of the Act, charging a violation of 30 C F.R [75. 400.

2. On January 12, 1982, there were accunul ations of fine
powdered coal, fine coal and |lunp coal along the tracks and
bet ween the tracks outby the | oading ranp of the 14 and 15 South
sections of the subject mne. The accumul ations extended for a
di stance of approximately 75 to 100 feet al ong and between the
rails, and for an additional 100 feet along the tight side rail
The accunul ations for the first 75 - 100 feet were approxi mately
4 feet in wwdth and from6 to 8 inches deep. The accumnul ati ons
along the tight side rail were 1 to 2 feet wide and 6 to 8 inches
deep. There was a D.C. car haul unit between the rails extending
for about 40 feet in the affected area. This was a stee
structure whi ch occupi ed nost of the area between the rails and
extended fromthe floor alnost as high as the rails. The
accumul ati ons between the rails in this area therefore, were not
as great as they appeared, and were not as deep as in other areas
ci ted.

3. Mne cars were present on the track along the area
cited. The cars were approximately 7 feet wi de, and extended out
over the tracks about 18 inches on each side. The accunul ations
between the rails were therefore |argely under the cars. The
cars were described as "possum bellies" and the bottom of the car
cane down alnost to the level of the track. Therefore, it was
difficult to see under the cars.

4. The ground wire was not properly connected to the return
feed wire to the radio unit just outby the belt entry along the
track approximately 2 to 3 feet fromthe accunul ati ons of coa
and coal dust.

5. The conduit switch to the punp was not properly entered
into the punp box and the frame was not connected to the feed
wire. This was approximately 2 to 3 feet fromthe accunul ati ons
of coal and coal dust cited herein.

6. There was a 250 Volt D.C. trolley wire hung fromthe
roof about 6 feet above the track on the tight side. The trolley
not or does not normally come within 600 to 1,000 feet fromthe
accumul ations cited herein.

7. Inspector Silka arrived at the area in question about
1: 50 p.m on January 12, 1982. The area had been inspected by
conpany mine examners at 5:20 a.m and at 1:20 p.m on the sane
day.

8. In the 15 nonths prior to the issuance of the order
chal | enged herein, 26 violations of the standard in 30 CF.R 0O
75.400 were issued to the subject mne, nine of theminvol ving
ranmp areas.
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STATUTORY PROVI S| ON

Section 104(d) (1) of the Act provides as foll ows:

(d)(1) If, upon any inspection of a coal or other

m ne, an authorized representative of the Secretary
finds that there has been a violation of any nmandatory
health or safety standard, and if he also finds that,
while the conditions created by such violation do not
cause i nm nent danger, such violation is of such nature
as could significantly and substantially contribute to
the cause and effect of a coal or other mne safety or
heal t h hazard, and if he finds such violation to be
caused by an unwarrantable failure of such operator to
conmply with such nandatory health or safety standards,
he shall include such finding in any citation given to
the operator under this Act. If, during the sane

i nspection or any subsequent inspection of such mne
within 90 days after the issuance of such citation, an
aut hori zed representati ve of the Secretary finds

anot her violation of any nandatory health or safety
standard and finds such violation to be al so caused by
an unwarrantable failure of such operator to so conply,
he shall forthwith issue an order requiring the
operator to cause all persons in the area affected by
such viol ation, except those persons referred to in
subsection (c) to be withdrawmm from and to be

prohi bited fromentering, such area until an authorized
representative of the Secretary determ nes that such
viol ati on has been abat ed.

REGULATORY PROVI SI ON

30 C.F.R [75.400 provides as follows: "Coal dust,
i ncluding float coal dust deposited on rock-dusted surfaces,
| oose coal, and other conmbustible materials, shall be cleaned up
and not be permitted to accunulate in active workings, or on
el ectric equi pnent therein.”

| SSUES - DOCKET NCS. PENN 82-64-R AND PENN 82- 184

1. After an order issued under section 104(d) has been
contested before the Comm ssion, may MSHA or an admini strative
| aw judge nodify it to a 104(d)(1) citation?

2. Was a violation of the standard in 30 C.F. R 0O75. 400
est abl i shed?

3. If aviolation occurred, was it of such a nature as
could significantly and substantially contribute to the cause and
effect of a coal mne safety or health hazard?
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4. If a violation occurred, was it caused by an unwarrantabl e
failure of the operator to conply with the standard in question?

5. If a violation occurred, what is the appropriate
penal ty?

CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW - DOCKET NCS. PENN 82-64-R AND PENN 82- 184

1. Consol was subject to the provisions of the Federal M ne
Safety and Health Act in the operation of the Renton Mne at al
times pertinent hereto, and the undersigned Adm nistrative Law
Judge has jurisdiction over the parties and subject matter of
thi s proceedi ng.

2. The Secretary's notion to nodify the 104(d) (1) order
contested herein to a 104(d) (1) citation is hereby GRANTED

DI SCUSSI ON

Subsequent to the hearing in these cases, the Conm ssion
uphel d the action of Judge Gary Melick in nmodifying an invalid
104(d) (1) withdrawal order to a 104(d)(1l) citation. Secretary of
Labor v. Consolidation Coal Conpany, 4 FMSHRC 1791 (1982). That
case was simlar to the present one in that the 104(d) (1)
citation underlying the contested order had been nodified by the
Judge to a 104(a) citation in a prior proceeding, and Conso
nmoved for summary deci sion on the ground that the order |acked
the required underlying 104(d) (1) citation. Prior to the
hearing, the Judge nodified the contested order conditioned on
evi dence showi ng a significant and substantial violation and an
unwarrantable failure to conply.

In the present case the necessary special findings ("S&S")
were contained in the order when it was issued. Consol argues
that it contested a withdrawal order which required inmedi ate
abatement and that it is not fair to permt the nodification
sought here, since it nust in effect contest a citation with
i mediate withdrawal , an entity not recognized in the Act. There
was no showi ng, however, of prejudice or surprise, no show ng
that its defense to a (c)(1) citation would differ fromits
defense to a (c)(1) order. See 4 FMBHRC at 1795. The
nodi fication here was acconpli shed on notion of the Secretary,
al t hough the Secretary al so issued and submitted in evidence a
copy of the nodification formit issued to Consol. The
Conmi ssion held that the proper procedure for nodification after
a notice of contest has been filed is by notion. 1d. On the
authority of the Comm ssion decision, | amgranting the notion to
nodi fy the contested order to a 104(d)(1) citation

3. On January 12, 1982, a violation of 30 CF. R [O75.400
was established in that | oose coal and coal dust was permitted to
accunul ate in active workings al ong and between the tracks out by
the | oading ranp of the 14 and 15 South sections of the subject
m ne. The operator did not present any evidence to contest the
fact of violation.



4. The violation referred to above was of such nature as
could significantly and substantially contribute to the cause and
effect of a mne safety or health hazard.
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DI SCUSSI ON

The test for a "significant and substantial" violation, laid
down by the Commission in Secretary v. Cenent Division, Nationa
Gypsum Conpany, 3 FMBHRC 822, is the reasonable |ikelihood that
the hazard contributed to will result in injury or illness of a
reasonably serious nature.

The hazard contributed to by accumul ati ons of | oose coal and
coal dust is a mne fire or explosion. Whether it is reasonably
likely to occur depends upon (1) the nature and extent of the
accunul ations; and (2) the existence of sources of ignition. |If
a fire or explosion occurred it is clearly likely to cause
injuries or illnesses of a reasonably serious nature.

The accunul ation cited here was substantial -- it extended a
di stance of al nost 200 feet, was 2 to 4 feet wide and 6 to 8
i nches deep. The top 2 inches was fine powdered dust or fl oat
dust. Approximately 25 percent of the total accunul ation

consi sted of coal dust; the renainder was | oose coal. The
testinmony is conflicting as to whether there was an ignition
source in the area of the accunulations. | find that the trolley

wire was not a potential source of ignition, since the notor did
not cone closer than 700 feet fromthe accunul ati ons. However, |
regard the inproperly connected ground wire to the radio, and the
ground wire not connected to the punp as potential sources of
ignition especially in the presence of float coal dust. The
float coal dust in itself has the capacity to propagate a m ne
fire or an explosion. Because of these factors, | find the

vi ol ati on was significant and substanti al

5. The violation resulted fromthe unwarrantable failure of
the operator to conply with the standard.

DI SCUSSI ON

The extent of the accunulation was such that it had to have
been there for at least half a shift or 4 hours prior to the
i nspector's arrival. The operator had been cited on many prior
occasions for violations of the standard in question. Because of
this, special care should have been taken to avoid repetition
The m ne exam ners who examined the area prior to the inspection
testified that they did not observe the accumul ati ons, and

accept their testinmony as truthful. |In fact, when wal ki ng al ong
the wi de side of the tracks, the accunul ation, which was between
the tracks and on the tight side, was difficult to see. It

clearly could have been seen if the exam ner was instructed to

| ook between the cars or get down and | ook under the cars. |
find that the condition was such that the operator could have and
shoul d have known of its existence.

6. The violation was serious, and was caused by the
operator's negligence. The operator is a |arge operator and has
a substantial history of prior violations. | conclude that an
appropriate penalty for the violation is $750.
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FI NDI NGS OF FACT - PENN 82-66-R AND PENN 82-109

1. On January 13, 1982, Dennis Swentosky, a Federal coa
m ne inspector, and a duly authorized representative of the
Secretary of Labor, issued an order of w thdrawal under section
104(d) (1) of the Act to Consol charging a violation of 30 C.F.R
075.1002-1(a)

2. On January 13, 1982, two non-perm ssi bl e breaker boxes
for shuttle cars were located 118 feet and 120 feet respectively
fromthe outby corner of the pillar block being m ned. The boxes
were approximately 160 feet and 175 feet fromthe two places in
the pillar which were being mned or the active cuttings.

3. In the coal mning industry, the termpillar workings
refers to the gob area and the pillar or pillars being m ned.

4. In retreat mning, when a pillar is mned out and the
roof coll apses, the air including possible nmethane fromthe gob
area i s forced outby.

5. Mning had been done on the shift prior to that during
which the order was issued. This mning involved the pillar in
guestion and the breaker boxes were in the sane |ocation. One
split had been m ned through the pillar and a cut had been taken
froma second split. The mning was being done with a continuous
m ner equi pped with a net hane nonitor.

6. No nethane was detected by the inspector at the pillar
split at the time the order was issued.

7. The subject mne does |iberate nethane and i s considered
a gassy mine. Methane is nore likely to be encountered in
retreat mning that it is in devel opnent m ning.

8. The nonperm ssi bl e breaker boxes are used to turn power
on and off the shuttle cars and an arc can occur when this is
done. An arc can also occur in the event of a short in the box.

9. The air readings taken in the section in question showed
good ventilation. The bleeders were functioning properly and
breaker posts were set to limt the area of the roof fall.

REGULATORY PROVI SI ON
30 CF.R [75.1002-1(a) provides as foll ows:
(a) Electric equipnment other than trolley wres,
trolley feeder wires, high-voltage cables, and
transfornmers shall be perm ssible, and maintained in a
perm ssi bl e condi ti on when
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such electric equipnent is located within 150 feet frompillar
wor ki ngs, except as provided in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this
section. [Paragraph (b) provides an exception for certain
nonper m ssi bl e equi pnent prior to March 30, 1974; paragraph (c)
excepts equi prent for which a permit for non-conpliance has been
i ssued. ]

| SSUES

1. Were the nonperm ssible breaker boxes invol ved herein
within 150 feet of "pillar workings" on January 13, 1982?

(a) Should the measurenent to the nonperm ssible
equi prent be taken fromthe outby corner of the pillar
being mned or fromthe actual place of the cut?

2. If aviolation was established, was it of such nature as
could significantly and substantially contribute to the cause and
effect of a mne safety or health hazard?

3. If aviolation occurred, was it caused by an
unwarrant abl e failure of the operator to conply with the standard
i n question?

4. If a violation occurred, what is the appropriate
penal ty?

CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW - DOCKET NOS. PENN 82-66- R AND PENN 82- 109

1. Consol was subject to the provisions of the Federal M ne
Safety and Health Act in the operation of the Renton Mne at al
times pertinent hereto, and the undersigned Adm nistrative Law
Judge has jurisdiction over the parties and subject matter of
thi s proceedi ng.

2. There is a valid underlying 104(d)(1) citation for
the contested order, nanely the one referred to in
Docket No. PENN 82-64-R

3. On January 13, 1982, a violation of 30 CF.R [
75.1002-1(a) was established in that two non-perm ssi bl e breaker
boxes for shuttle cars were located within 150 feet of pillar
wor ki ngs in the subject nmne

DI SCUSSI ON

The term"pillar workings" is not defined in the
regul ati ons. The MSHA underground inspector's manual directs that
the 150 foot distance be nmeasured fromthe non-permssible
equi prent in question to the nearer of (a) the outby edge of the
pillar being nmned, or (b) the inby edge of the solid pillars
i medi ately outby the previously pillared area. The inspector
testified that this has | ong been MSHA's policy and that the
policy is well known in the industry. He further testified that
the termpillar workings is a
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broad term and includes the gob area and the entire bl ock or

bl ocks being mned. Consol's Safety Department had been given a
copy of the MSHA Inspector's Manual. Citations have been issued
to Consol previously for violations of the standard in question
The State of Pennsylvania standard requires nmeasurenment fromthe
el ectrical equipnment to the actual working face. Consol's
general mne foreman was aware of the MSHA policy and knew that

t he breaker boxes were within 150 feet of the outby corner of the
pillar being mned. He disagreed with the definition of pillar
wor ki ngs, however, and stated that he would consider it as
referring to the actual working face.

It would clearly be preferable to have the termpillar
wor ki ngs defined in the regulations. The definition assumed by
MBHA, however, seens to ne to be a reasonable one, and nuch nore
sati sfactory and practical than any other definition suggested.
If the distance is neasured fromthe working face to the
el ectrical equipnment, it would change as the bl ock was being
m ned and m ght require shutting off the power and noving the
equi prent before the pillar was conpletely mined. | accept the
testinmony of the inspector that the termpillar workings nmeans
the gob and the entire pillar or pillars being mned, and that
this definition is known and followed in the mning industry.

4. The violation referred to in Conclusion of Law No. 3 was
of such nature as could significantly and substantially
contribute to the cause and effect of a mne safety or health
hazar d.

DI SCUSSI ON

The hazard which the standard is designed to prevent is an
ignition or explosion which could result from nethane bei ng
forced back over electrical equipment which may arc. Al though
nmet hane was not detected at the tinme of the citation, the mne is
a gassy mine, and nethane is likely to be encountered in retreat
mning. |f nethane was forced back over non-perm ssible
el ectrical equipnment, and an ignition or explosion occurred,
serious injuries to mners would be likely. M conclusion is
based in large part on the inspector's testinony, but | have
considered the testinony of Larry Cuddy to the effect that the
bl eeder system woul d prevent nethane buildup in the gob and the
breaker posts would prevent a running fall. The hazards of
nmet hane in underground mning are too well known to require
docunentation, as is the unpredictability and suddenness of its
appear ance.

5. The violation referred to in Conclusion of Law No. 3
resulted fromthe unwarrantable failure of the operator to conmply
wi th the standard

DI SCUSSI ON
Randy Debolt, General Mne foreman of the Renton M ne,

recogni zed before the order was witten that there was a
viol ation of the standard. Larry Cuddy, section foreman, stated



that he made a m stake by nmeasuring fromthe working face to the
shuttle car boxes. He testified that he did so because
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the State of Pennsylvania requires neasurenent fromthat point.

| accept M. Cuddy's testinony as truthful, but | conclude that
he shoul d have known that the condition constituted a viol ation
of the Federal standard. On that basis, | conclude the violation
was unwar r ant abl e.

6. The violation was serious, and was caused by the
operator's negligence. The operator is a |arge operator and has
a substantial history of prior violations. | conclude that an
appropriate penalty for the violation is $750.

ORDER

Based upon the above Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of
Law, I T IS ORDERED:

1. Oder of Wthdrawal No. 1143777 issued January 12, 1982,
nodi fied herein to a 104(d)(1) citation, charging a significant
and substantial violation and an unwarrantable failure to conmply
i s AFFI RVED as nodifi ed.

2. Oder of Wthdrawal No. 1142981 i ssued under section
104(d) (1) on January 13, 1982, is AFFI RVED

3. Consolidation Coal Conpany shall within 30 days of the
date of this decision pay the sumof $1,500 for the two
violations found herein to have occurred.

Janes A. Broderick
Admi ni strative Law Judge



